
 Finance Committee Agenda 
Monday, September 21, 2020 at 2:00 PM 

[This meeting is being held virtually in accordance with Beaufort 

County Resolution 2020-05]  
CITIZEN COMMENTS AND PUBLIC HEARING COMMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED IN 

WRITING VIA EMAIL TO THE CLERK TO COUNCIL AT SBROCK@BCGOV.NET OR PO 

DRAWER 1228, BEAUFORT SC 29901. CITIZENS MAY ALSO  COMMENT DURING THE 

MEETING THROUGH FACEBOOK LIVE 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, 
POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA 
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - MAY 28, 2020; JUNE 4, 2020; JULY 13, 2020; 
AUGUST 17, 2020 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

 

6. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEM TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2019/56 

PENN CENTER RENOVATIONS 

7. ACCOMMODATIONS TAX/ HOSPITALITY TAX RESERVE FUND 

ORDINANCE 

8. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH GREATER BEAUFORT 
PORT ROYAL CONVENTION AND VISITOR’S BUREAU 

9. DISTANCE LEARNING GRANT 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

 

10. STATUS OF THE INTERNAL AUDITOR 

11. CAFR TIMELINE DISCUSSION 

12. BUDGET BOOK STATUS DISCUSSION 

13. REVIEW AND DISCUSSION OF DMO’S AND CHAMBERS SUBMISSION’S 

14. 2020 GO BOND PROJECTS  

15. COVID-19 RESPONSE GRANT FOR ELECTION OFFICIALS  
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 

 

16. CONSIDERATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF IAN SCOTT FOR 
AIRPORTS BOARD 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

County Council of 

Beaufort County 

Finance Committee 

Meeting 

Chairman 

CHRIS HERVOCHON 
 

Vice Chairman 
MARK LAWSON 

 

Committee Members 
GERALD DAWSON 

STU RODMAN 
PAUL SOMMERVILLE 

 

County Administrator 

ASHLEY M. JACOBS 

 

Clerk to Council 

SARAH W. BROCK 

 
Staff Support 

RAYMOND WILLIAMS 

 
Administration Building 
Beaufort County Government  

Robert Smalls Complex 
100 Ribaut Road 

 
Contact 

Post Office Drawer 1228 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228  

 (843) 255-2180 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 
 

 

1

http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/


County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

 

17. CITIZEN COMMENT (Every member of the public who is recognized to speak shall limit comment to three 
minutes - Citizens may email sbrock@bcgov.net or comment on our Facebook Live stream)  

18. ADJOURNMENT 

2



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTS 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

FINANCE COMMITTEE  9/21/20 

PRESENTER INFORMATION 

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN HERVOCHON 

(1 MINUTE OR LESS) 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM MAY 28, 2020, JUNE 4, 2020, JULY 13, 2020, & AUGUST 17, 2020  

 

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM MAY 28, 2020, JUNE 4, 2020, JULY 13, 2020, & AUGUST 17, 2020  

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 NONE 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

APPROVE 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM MAY 28, 2020, JUNE 4, 2020, JULY 13, 2020, & AUGUST 17, 2020  

 

 

 

 

3

Item 5.



 Finance Committee Budget Work Session 

Minutes 
Thursday, June 4, 2020 at 2:00 PM 

Virtual Meeting 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Hervochon called the meeting to order at 2:00pm.  
 
PRESENT 
Committee Chairman Hervochon 
Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson 
Council Member Passiment 
Council Member Sommerville 
Council Member Covert 
Council Member Dawson 
Council Member Rodman 
Council Member Glover 
Council Member Howard 
Council Member McElynn 
Council Member Flewelling 
 
FOIA 
Committee Chairman Hervochon noted that the Public Notification of this 
meeting has been published, posted, and distributed in compliance with the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Committee Chairman Hervochon led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, seconded by Council 
Member Flewelling to approve the agenda. The vote: Unanimous without 
objection. The motion passed. 11:0 

 

ACTION ITEM 

Proposed Budget Fiscal Year 20/21 

Discussion: County Administrator, Ashley Jacobs presented the Sheriff’s add 
on report for FY 20/21.   
Sheriff’s Request- Original Request for add backs: 
Add back Repairs to equipment- $7,600.00 
Add back Special Operations Division Data Equipment- $30,000.00 
Spillman (CAD Software) Allocation- $181,830.00 
11 Replacement Vehicles and accessories -$419,322.00 
Beaufort Marine Rescue Squad- $10,000.00 
COVID-19 Supplies $20,000.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

County Council of 

Beaufort County 

Finance Committee 

Meeting 

Chairman 

CHRIS HERVOCHON 
 

Vice Chairman 
MARK LAWSON 

 

Committee Members 
GERALD DAWSON 

STU RODMAN 
PAUL SOMMERVILLE 

 

County Administrator 

ASHLEY M. JACOBS 

 

Clerk to Council 

SARAH W. BROCK 

 
Staff Support 

RAYMOND WILLIAMS 

 
Administration Building 
Beaufort County Government  

Robert Smalls Complex 
100 Ribaut Road 

 
Contact 

Post Office Drawer 1228 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228  

 (843) 255-2180 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 
 

 

4

Item 5.

http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/


Finance Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Total $668,752.00 

Updated Request from Sheriff’s Department Received June 3, 2020 
Repairs to Equipment- $7,600.00 
Administrative Division Renovations- $137,000.00 
Total $144,600.00 
 
Adjustments to accommodate request: 
Reduction in EMS Maintenance Contract $38,620.00 
IT Hardware and Software $105,980.00 
Total$144,600.00 
 
General Fund: 
Requested Expeditures- $136,775,132.00 
Total Revenue- $130,300,431.00 
Gap (Revenues-Expenditures) $6,474,701.00 
Recommended Budget Expenditures $130,300,431.00 
BALANCED BUDGET 
 
Next Steps: 
June 8th County Council Meeting- second reading 
June 22nd County Council Meeting- third reading and public hearing 
CIP/GO Bond Work Session- TBD 

Council Member Rodman wanted to discuss the status of the Hilton Head Convenience center. The discussion was that 
funding would continue for six months. The conclusion is to re-discuss the matter at a later time. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, seconded by Council Member Flewelling to forward the 
requested budget amount of $130,300,431.00 to full Council for second reading and public hearing on the FY 20/21 
budget. The Vote: Yea: Committee Chairman Hervochon, Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson, Council Member 
Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council Member Dawson, Council Member 
Flewelling, Council Member Glover, Council Member Howard, Council Member McElynn. Nay: Council Member 
Rodman. The motion passed: 10:1.  
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Per Clerk to Council Sarah Brock, no emails regarding citizen comments have been received.  

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 2:58pm.  

 

Ratified by Committee:  
 

 

5

Item 5.



 Finance Committee Budget Work Session 

Minutes 
Thursday, May 28, 2020 at 2:00 PM 

Virtual Meeting 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Hervochon called the meeting to order at 2:00pm.  
 
PRESENT 
Committee Chairman Hervochon 
Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson 
Council Member Passiment 
Council Member Sommerville 
Council Member Covert 
Council Member Dawson 
Council Member Rodman 
Council Member Glover 
Council Member Howard 
Council Member McElynn 
Council Member Flewelling 
 
FOIA 
Committee Chairman Hervochon noted that the Public Notification of this 
meeting has been published, posted, and distributed in compliance with the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Committee Chairman Hervochon led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Committee Chairman Hervochon stated the agenda needed amending to 
include a discussion item; The historic pay of Council relative to the articles by 
the Island Packet related to the cost of living increase and stipends.   
 
Motion: It was moved by Council Member Covert, seconded by Council 
Member Flewelling to amend the agenda to add the discussion item, The 
historic pay of Council relative to the articles by the Island Packet related to 
the cost of living increase and stipends. The vote: Unanimous without 
objection. The motion passed. 11:0 
 
Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, seconded by Council 
Member Covert to approve the agenda as amended. The vote: Unanimous 
without objection. The motion passed. 11:0 

 

DISCUSSION ITEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

County Council of 

Beaufort County 

Finance Committee 

Meeting 

Chairman 

CHRIS HERVOCHON 
 

Vice Chairman 
MARK LAWSON 

 

Committee Members 
GERALD DAWSON 

STU RODMAN 
PAUL SOMMERVILLE 

 

County Administrator 

ASHLEY M. JACOBS 

 

Clerk to Council 

SARAH W. BROCK 

 
Staff Support 

RAYMOND WILLIAMS 

 
Administration Building 
Beaufort County Government  

Robert Smalls Complex 
100 Ribaut Road 

 
Contact 

Post Office Drawer 1228 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228  

 (843) 255-2180 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 
 

 

6

Item 5.

http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/


Finance Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

The historic pay of Council relative to the articles by the Island Packet related to the cost of living increase and 
stipends 

Discussion: Committee Chairman Hervochon stated that staff is looking into this issue and researching the stipend and 
will be providing the analysis. Regarding the cost of living increase, Council approved Administration compensation, 
which included a cost of living increase. The Council did not vote for a separate COLA and wants to make that clear for 
the public. There is an Ordinance, which is required by state law, that approves a COLA increase for Council. Committee 
Chairman Hervochon listed a series of questions to address on how this happened and how to correct it. 

Council Member Passiment discussed the report from the Island Packet regarding the Council's salary increase 
doubling. Clarifying that the amounts proposed, in the newspaper, came from researched salaries from other Counties. 
Beaufort County is not accurately comparable to those Counties.  

Council Member Flewelling requested that any discussion of overpayment should be sent to the individual personally 
and to be handled individually before releasing to the public or having Council handle. 

Council Member McElynn stated that the 2019 COLA overpayment was corrected by payroll by deducting pay. 

Council Member Rodman stated that every year there is an Ordinance for the budget. That budget includes a line item 
for Council's compensation. Therefore, it was approved each year. 

Council Member Howard has requested a reconciliation because the numbers produced by the paper do not match 
what she has recorded. 

Council Member Flewelling stated at the time, about six years ago, the Council changed the meetings allowed to 144.  
There shouldn't be any problems before the change. 

County Administrator Ashley Jacobs mentioned that payroll has already made adjustments regarding the cost of living 
increase. 

PRESENTATION ITEMS 

Beaufort County, Budget FY 2021 

Discussion: Ashley Jacobs presented the Beaufort County Proposed Budget Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 

General Fund: Budgeting Goals; balanced budget, no tax increase budget, a budget that maintains current levels of 
service, a financially constrained plan that provides for critical personnel and capital equipment, no layoffs or furloughs. 

General Fund: Big Picture May 14, 2020 
Requested Expenditures $136,775,132.00 
Total Revenue $130,300,431.00 
Gap (Revenues – Expenditures) $6,474,701.00 
Recommended Budget Expenditures $130,297,237.00 
Surplus $3,194.00 
 
Council cuts to General Fund:  
 
Sheriff’s Department 
Security Cameras/Key fobs $200,000.00 
3 New Traffic Management Cameras $195,000.00 
5 Flashing Beacons $160,000.00 
2 Highway Advisory Radios $112,000.00 
Resurface Shooting Range $30,000.00 
Spillman (CAD Software) $243,093.00 
Repairs to Equipment $7,600.00 
Administrative Division Renovations $137,000.00 

7

Item 5.



Finance Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Special Operation Division Data Equip. $30,000.00 
Enforcement Division Vehicle $24,000.00 
Traffic Management Vehicle $44,000.00 (already removed) 
 
Auditor 
Savings in printing $5,000.00 
 
Treasurer 
Bank fees previously included personnel expense $50,000.00 
 
Hilton Head Parks 
Park Maintenance parks owned by TOHHI $141,415.00 
 
Hilton Head Convenience Center 
Six months of operating- transfer to TOHHI/close $397,250.00 
 
Hilton Head Roads 
Annual Maintenance $55,000.00 
 
Total Cuts: $1,789,358.00 
(Hilton Head Road resurfacing paid for with TAG/CTC fund, special revenue fund $390,940.00) 
 
Council adds to General Fund: 
Paid Parental Leave (half year, estimated) $450,000.00 
Public Defender $748,322.00 
Council Salary Adjustments $60,000.00 
Total Adds: $1,258,322.00 
Surplus: $534,230.00 
 
Public Defender Request: 
Current Transfer from General Fund $899,909.00 
Public Defender FY 21 Request $1,600,000.00 
Requested Increase $700,091.00 
New Personnel Requested (salaries and benefits) 
 1 social worker ($74,790.00) $74,790.00 
 4 Attorney’s ($93,488.00 each)   $373,952.00 
 3 Administrative Assistances ($49,860.00 each) $149,580.00 
Infrastructure (new matrix) $150,000.00 
Total: $748,322.00 
 
Administrator Cuts/Adds to the General Fund 
 
Cut- Updated cost for packer truck $35,000.00 
 
Additions: 
Jasper County Joint Shelter Maintenance $15,000.00 
Rent for Veterans Affairs Office $12,000.00 
Treasurer’s postage $8,000.00 
Deductible to repair Buckwalter floor $25,000.00 
Resurface Buckwalter floors (2 gyms and racquetball) $8,000.00 

8

Item 5.



Finance Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Blower for Parks and Recreation (replacement) $10,000.00 
Chemical sprayer for Parks and Recreation (new) $16,000.00 
Master Plan Parks and Recreation $120,000.00 
Budget Director (salary and benefits) $94,500.00 
Solid Waste Decal Manager (salary and benefits) $60,750.00 
IT Support Administrator (salary and benefits) $94,000.00 
IT Hardware and Software $105,980.00 
Total: $534,230.00 
 
County Comparison of General Fund Budgets: 
Beaufort population 188,715   $134,850,000.00 
Dorchester population 160,647   $59,342,000.00 
Aiken population 169,401   $39,794,888.00 
Berkeley population 221,091  $90,972,800.00 
Lexington population 295,032     $144,872,753.00 
York population 274,118  $118,086,852.00 
Spartanburg population 313,888 $110,612,000.00 
 
Sheriff’s Requests 
In response to the cuts approved by County Council on May 26, the Sheriff’s office sent a request on May 28, 2020 
for the following: 
Repairs to equipment $7,600.00 
Special Operations Division Data Equipment $30,000.00 
Spillman (CAD Software) $181,830.00 
 (Funds should be either encumbered in FY20 or carried over) 
11 Replacement Vehicles/Accessories $419,322.00 
 (Don’t know if evaluated by fleet management) 
Beaufort Marine Rescue Squad $10,000.00 
 (Already in the Fy21 budget) 
COVID-19 Supplies $20,000.00 
 (These Supplies are being purchased out of emergency funds)  
Total: $668,752.00 
Variance $515,941.00 
 
Sheriff’s Department, County Council, and Administrator discuss the budget add on items and decide to take action 
at a later date and discuss it more in-depth. 
 
Finance Director Hayes Williams presented the Millage for FY21. 
 
County Operations: FY20 50.7 FY21 50.7 Taxation $106,217,968.00 
Higher Education: FY20 2.4 FY21 2.4 Taxation $4,636,032.00 
Indigent Care: FY20 .8 FY21 .8 Taxation $1,897,448.00 
Economic Development:  FY20 .3 FY21 .3 Taxation $508,594.00 
Rural and Critical Lands: FY20 5.5 FY21 5.5 Taxation $10,649,726.00 
County Debt Service: FY20 5.6 FY21 5.6 Taxation $11,230,700.00 
Bluffton Township FD: FY20 24.1 FY21 24.1 Taxation $15,639,382.00 
Burton FD: FY20 70.3 FY21 70.3 Taxation $5,194,996.00 
Daufuski FD: FY20 62.0 FY21 62.0 Taxation $1,211,046.00 
Lady’s Island/ St. Helena FD: FY20 40.1 FY21 40.1 Taxation $6,199,820.00 
Sheldon FD: FY20 38.5 FY20 38.8 Taxation $1,499,683.00 

9

Item 5.



Finance Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

School District: FY20 114 FY21 114 Taxation: $149,733,105.00 
 
County Administrator, Ashley Jacobs discussed the Next Steps:  
June 8th County Council Meeting- second reading and public hearing 
June 22nd Third Reading and Public Hearing 
CIP/GO Bond Work Session- TBD  
 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 3:38pm.  

 

Ratified by Committee:  
 

 

10

Item 5.



 Finance Committee Minutes 
Monday, August 17, 2020 at 2:00 PM 

Virtual Meeting 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Hervochon called the meeting to order at 2:00pm.  
 
PRESENT 
Committee Chairman Hervochon 
Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson 
Council Member Passiment 
Council Member Sommerville 
Council Member Covert 
Council Member Dawson 
Council Member Rodman 
Council Member Glover 
Council Member Howard 
Council Member McElynn 
 
ABSENT 
Council Member Flewelling 
 
FOIA 
Committee Chairman Hervochon noted that the Public Notification of this 
meeting has been published, posted, and distributed in compliance with the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Committee Chairman Hervochon led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Committee Chairman Hervochon stated that the agenda needed to be 
amended to add an item; Carryover FY2021.  
 
Motion: It was moved by Council Member Sommerville, seconded by 
Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson to amend the agenda to add the item, 
Carryover FY2021. The vote: Unanimous without objection. The motion 
passed. 10:0 
 
Motion: It was moved by Council Member Dawson, seconded by Council 
Member Sommerville to approve the agenda as amended. The vote: 
Unanimous without objection. The motion passed. 10:0 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Motion: It was moved by_________________, seconded by______________ 
to approve the minutes from March 16, 2020, April 9, 2020, and May 21, 2020. 
The Vote: Unanimous without objection. The motion passed. 10:0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

County Council of 

Beaufort County 

Finance Committee 

Meeting 

Chairman 

CHRIS HERVOCHON 
 

Vice Chairman 
MARK LAWSON 

 

Committee Members 
GERALD DAWSON 

STU RODMAN 
PAUL SOMMERVILLE 

 

County Administrator 

ASHLEY M. JACOBS 

 

Clerk to Council 

SARAH W. BROCK 

 
Staff Support 

RAYMOND WILLIAMS 

 
Administration Building 
Beaufort County Government  

Robert Smalls Complex 
100 Ribaut Road 

 
Contact 

Post Office Drawer 1228 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228  

 (843) 255-2180 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 
 

 

11

Item 5.

http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/


Finance Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

ACTION ITEMS 

Beaufort County, Carryover Budget FY 2021 

Discussion: Raymond Hayes, Interim CFO, presented requested items to roll over into the fiscal year 2021. Various 
departments are requesting this rollover from their fiscal year 2020 budget to complete projects, purchase items, and 
fulfill other departmental needs that were not complete due to COVID 19.  

General Fund total requested Amount $1,339,836.65: Sheriff’s Department $691,130.91; Public Works $47,870.00; 
Roads and Drainage $9,604.15; Mosquito Control $21,214.00; Parks and Recreation; $93,579.00; Animal Services 
$30,000.00; Treasurer’s Office $12,609.88; Facilities Maintenance $433,828.00.  

Special Revenue Fund total requested amount $12,609.86 from the Treasurer’s Office.  

Stormwater Proprietary Fund total requested amount $752,931.34 from Stormwater.  

 
The total carryover request is $2,105,377.85. The money is available in the requested funds and will carry over into the 
fiscal year 2021.  

It was pointed out by Council Member Rodman that appropriation of funds requires three readings and a public 
hearing.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, seconded by Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson to forward the 
Carryover Budget FY2021 to County Council for consideration. The Vote: Yea: Committee Chairman Hervochon, 
Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson, Council Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member 
Covert, Council Member Dawson, Council Member Rodman, Council Member Glover, Council Member Howard, Council 
Member McElynn. The motion passed. 10:0. 

Consideration of a Resolution approving the Mitchelville Freedom Park Master Plan 

Discussion: Ahmad Ward with The Historic Mitchelville Freedom Park presented the completion of the master plan for 
approval of the Resolution. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, seconded by Council Member Dawson to approve the Resolution 
for the Mitchelville Freedom Park Master Plan. The Vote: Yea: Committee Chairman Hervochon, Committee Vice-
Chairman Lawson, Council Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council 
Member Dawson, Council Member Rodman, Council Member Glover, Council Member Howard, Council Member 
McElynn. The motion passed. 10:0. 

Approval of an Ordinance to authorize $575,000.00 to the Historic Mitchelville Freedom Park for Phase I Build Out 
of the Mitchelville Freedom Park Master Plan.  

Raymond Hayes, Interim CFO, stated that the Master Plan for Mitchelville Freedom Park requires approval for funding 
from H-Tax. The H-Tax/A-Tax committee reviewed the Master Plan and find that this item meets the requirements for 
funds.  

Motion: It was moved by Committee Council Member Rodman, seconded by Council Member Glover to forward the 
approval of an Ordinance to authorize $575,000.00 from H-Tax for the Historic Mitchelville Freedom Park Phase I Build 
Out from the Master Plan. The Vote: Yea: Committee Chairman Hervochon, Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson, Council 
Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council Member Dawson, Council 
Member Rodman, Council Member Glover, Council Member Howard, Council Member McElynn. The motion passed. 
10:0. 

Approval for Purchase of Two (2) Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Ambulances-Remounts for a total cost of 
$310,878.00. 

Discussion: Phil Foot, Assistant County Administrator for Public Safety, presented the request to approve the purchase 
of two EMS Ambulances- remounts.  

12

Item 5.



Finance Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Motion: It was moved by Committee Vice Chairman Lawson, seconded by Council Member Howard to forward to 
Council the approval for purchase of two (2) emergency medical service (EMS) Ambulances-Remounts for a total cost 
of $310,878.00. The Votes: Yea: Committee Chairman Hervochon, Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson, Council Member 
Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council Member Dawson, Council Member 
Rodman, Council Member Glover, Council Member Howard, Council Member McElynn. The motion passed. 10:0. 

Approval of an Ordinance to authorize and approve a mult-county park agreement by and between Beaufort County 
and Jasper County relating to the Trask East Solar, LLC, Project 

Discussion: John O’Toole, Executive Director of Beaufort County Economic Development Corporation, presented the 
MCP or MCI to be approved at a 99/1% mix. It will cost the county approximately $492.00 of the projected $490,000.00 
revenue that comes from this project.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Glover, seconded by Council Member Dawson to forward to council the 
approval of an Ordinance to authorize and approve a multi-county park agreement by and between Beaufort County 
and Jasper County relating to the Trask East Solar, LLC, Project. The Vote: Yea: Committee Chairman Hervochon, 
Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson, Council Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member 
Covert, Council Member Dawson, Council Member Rodman, Council Member Glover, Council Member Howard, Council 
Member McElynn. The motion passed. 10:0 

Approval of a Contract Award recommendation to Purchase a new (DEMO) 2020 Pump Truck in the amount of 
$551,200.00 from Ahrens-Fox Engine Co.  

Discussion: Chief Jones with the Sheldon Fire Department presented an approval request for the purchase of a new 
2020 pump truck for $551,200.00. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Dawson, seconded by Council Member Glover to forward to Council the 
approval of a contract award recommendation to purchase a new (demo) 2020 pump truck in the amount of 
$551,200.00 from Ahrens-Fox Engine Company. The Vote: Yea: Committee Chairman Hervochon, Committee Vice-
Chairman Lawson, Council Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council 
Member Dawson, Council Member Rodman, Council Member Glover, Council Member Howard, Council Member 
McElynn. The motion passed. 10:0. 

Approval of a contract award for a commercial ramp expansion at Hilton Head Airport for a total cost of 
$3,307,934.00 
 
Discussion: Airport Director, Jon Rembold presented a request for a contract award from a commercial ramp expansion 
at Hilton Head Airport. The cost is $3,307,934.00 Due to the CARES Act, this project is 100% funded by the FFA.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Glover, seconded by Council Member Rodman to forward to Council the 
approval of a contract award for a commercial ramp expansion at Hilton Head Airport for a total cost of $3,307,934.00. 
The Vote: Yea: Committee Chairman Hervochon, Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson, Council Member Passiment, 
Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council Member Dawson, Council Member Rodman, Council 
Member Glover, Council Member Howard, Council Member McElynn. The motion passed. 10:0. 

Consideration for Approval of Hilton Head Island Airport-Wetlands Mitigation Payment for a total cost of 
$414,000.00 

Discussion: Airport Director, John Rembold presented a request for a wetlands mitigation payment due to the 
expansion of the commercial ramp at the Hilton Head Airport. The cost is $414,000.00. Due to the CARES Act, this 
project is 100% funded by the FFA.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Covert, seconded by Council Member Howard to forward to Council the 
consideration for approval of Hilton Head Island Airport-Wetlands Mitigation Payment for a total cost of $414,000.00. 
The Votes: Yea: Committee Chairman Hervochon, Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson, Council Member Passiment, 

13

Item 5.



Finance Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council Member Dawson, Council Member Rodman, Council 
Member Glover, Council Member Howard, Council Member McElynn. The motion passes. 10:0. 
 
BOARDS AND COMMISSION 
 
Consideration for approval to the Airports Board- David Mixson 
 
Motion: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, seconded by Council Member Glover to forward to Council the 
consideration for approval to the Airports Board-David Mixson. The Vote: Yea: Committee Chairman Hervochon, 
Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson, Council Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member 
Covert, Council Member Dawson, Council Member Rodman, Council Member Glover, Council Member Howard, Council 
Member McElynn. The motion passed. 10:0. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Per Clerk to Council Sarah Brock, no emails regarding citizen comments have been received.  

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 2:46pm.  

 

Ratified by Committee:  
 

 

14

Item 5.



 Finance Committee Budget Work Session 

Minutes 
Thursday, May 28, 2020 at 2:00 PM 

Virtual Meeting 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Hervochon called the meeting to order at 2:00pm.  
 
PRESENT 
Committee Chairman Hervochon 
Committee Vice-Chairman Lawson 
Council Member Passiment 
Council Member Sommerville 
Council Member Covert 
Council Member Dawson 
Council Member Rodman 
Council Member Glover 
Council Member Howard 
Council Member McElynn 
Council Member Flewelling 
 
FOIA 
Committee Chairman Hervochon noted that the Public Notification of this 
meeting has been published, posted, and distributed in compliance with the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Committee Chairman Hervochon led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Committee Chairman Hervochon stated the agenda needed amending to 
include a discussion item; The historic pay of Council relative to the articles by 
the Island Packet related to the cost of living increase and stipends.   
 
Motion: It was moved by Council Member Covert, seconded by Council 
Member Flewelling to amend the agenda to add the discussion item, The 
historic pay of Council relative to the articles by the Island Packet related to 
the cost of living increase and stipends. The vote: Unanimous without 
objection. The motion passed. 11:0 
 
Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, seconded by Council 
Member Covert to approve the agenda as amended. The vote: Unanimous 
without objection. The motion passed. 11:0 

 

DISCUSSION ITEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

County Council of 

Beaufort County 

Finance Committee 

Meeting 

Chairman 

CHRIS HERVOCHON 
 

Vice Chairman 
MARK LAWSON 

 

Committee Members 
GERALD DAWSON 

STU RODMAN 
PAUL SOMMERVILLE 

 

County Administrator 

ASHLEY M. JACOBS 

 

Clerk to Council 

SARAH W. BROCK 

 
Staff Support 

RAYMOND WILLIAMS 

 
Administration Building 
Beaufort County Government  

Robert Smalls Complex 
100 Ribaut Road 

 
Contact 

Post Office Drawer 1228 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228  

 (843) 255-2180 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 
 

 

15

Item 5.

http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/


Finance Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

The historic pay of Council relative to the articles by the Island Packet related to the cost of living increase and 
stipends 

Discussion: Committee Chairman Hervochon stated that staff is looking into this issue and researching the stipend and 
will be providing the analysis. Regarding the cost of living increase, Council approved Administration compensation, 
which included a cost of living increase. The Council did not vote for a separate COLA and wants to make that clear for 
the public. There is an Ordinance, which is required by state law, that approves a COLA increase for Council. Committee 
Chairman Hervochon listed a series of questions to address on how this happened and how to correct it. 

Council Member Passiment discussed the report from the Island Packet regarding the Council's salary increase 
doubling. Clarifying that the amounts proposed, in the newspaper, came from researched salaries from other Counties. 
Beaufort County is not accurately comparable to those Counties.  

Council Member Flewelling requested that any discussion of overpayment should be sent to the individual personally 
and to be handled individually before releasing to the public or having Council handle. 

Council Member McElynn stated that the 2019 COLA overpayment was corrected by payroll by deducting pay. 

Council Member Rodman stated that every year there is an Ordinance for the budget. That budget includes a line item 
for Council's compensation. Therefore, it was approved each year. 

Council Member Howard has requested a reconciliation because the numbers produced by the paper do not match 
what she has recorded. 

Council Member Flewelling stated at the time, about six years ago, the Council changed the meetings allowed to 144.  
There shouldn't be any problems before the change. 

County Administrator Ashley Jacobs mentioned that payroll has already made adjustments regarding the cost of living 
increase. 

PRESENTATION ITEMS 

Beaufort County, Budget FY 2021 

Discussion: Ashley Jacobs presented the Beaufort County Proposed Budget Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 

General Fund: Budgeting Goals; balanced budget, no tax increase budget, a budget that maintains current levels of 
service, a financially constrained plan that provides for critical personnel and capital equipment, no layoffs or furloughs. 

General Fund: Big Picture May 14, 2020 
Requested Expenditures $136,775,132.00 
Total Revenue $130,300,431.00 
Gap (Revenues – Expenditures) $6,474,701.00 
Recommended Budget Expenditures $130,297,237.00 
Surplus $3,194.00 
 
Council cuts to General Fund:  
 
Sheriff’s Department 
Security Cameras/Key fobs $200,000.00 
3 New Traffic Management Cameras $195,000.00 
5 Flashing Beacons $160,000.00 
2 Highway Advisory Radios $112,000.00 
Resurface Shooting Range $30,000.00 
Spillman (CAD Software) $243,093.00 
Repairs to Equipment $7,600.00 
Administrative Division Renovations $137,000.00 

16

Item 5.



Finance Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Special Operation Division Data Equip. $30,000.00 
Enforcement Division Vehicle $24,000.00 
Traffic Management Vehicle $44,000.00 (already removed) 
 
Auditor 
Savings in printing $5,000.00 
 
Treasurer 
Bank fees previously included personnel expense $50,000.00 
 
Hilton Head Parks 
Park Maintenance parks owned by TOHHI $141,415.00 
 
Hilton Head Convenience Center 
Six months of operating- transfer to TOHHI/close $397,250.00 
 
Hilton Head Roads 
Annual Maintenance $55,000.00 
 
Total Cuts: $1,789,358.00 
(Hilton Head Road resurfacing paid for with TAG/CTC fund, special revenue fund $390,940.00) 
 
Council adds to General Fund: 
Paid Parental Leave (half year, estimated) $450,000.00 
Public Defender $748,322.00 
Council Salary Adjustments $60,000.00 
Total Adds: $1,258,322.00 
Surplus: $534,230.00 
 
Public Defender Request: 
Current Transfer from General Fund $899,909.00 
Public Defender FY 21 Request $1,600,000.00 
Requested Increase $700,091.00 
New Personnel Requested (salaries and benefits) 
 1 social worker ($74,790.00) $74,790.00 
 4 Attorney’s ($93,488.00 each)   $373,952.00 
 3 Administrative Assistances ($49,860.00 each) $149,580.00 
Infrastructure (new matrix) $150,000.00 
Total: $748,322.00 
 
Administrator Cuts/Adds to the General Fund 
 
Cut- Updated cost for packer truck $35,000.00 
 
Additions: 
Jasper County Joint Shelter Maintenance $15,000.00 
Rent for Veterans Affairs Office $12,000.00 
Treasurer’s postage $8,000.00 
Deductible to repair Buckwalter floor $25,000.00 
Resurface Buckwalter floors (2 gyms and racquetball) $8,000.00 

17

Item 5.



Finance Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Blower for Parks and Recreation (replacement) $10,000.00 
Chemical sprayer for Parks and Recreation (new) $16,000.00 
Master Plan Parks and Recreation $120,000.00 
Budget Director (salary and benefits) $94,500.00 
Solid Waste Decal Manager (salary and benefits) $60,750.00 
IT Support Administrator (salary and benefits) $94,000.00 
IT Hardware and Software $105,980.00 
Total: $534,230.00 
 
County Comparison of General Fund Budgets: 
Beaufort population 188,715   $134,850,000.00 
Dorchester population 160,647   $59,342,000.00 
Aiken population 169,401   $39,794,888.00 
Berkeley population 221,091  $90,972,800.00 
Lexington population 295,032     $144,872,753.00 
York population 274,118  $118,086,852.00 
Spartanburg population 313,888 $110,612,000.00 
 
Sheriff’s Requests 
In response to the cuts approved by County Council on May 26, the Sheriff’s office sent a request on May 28, 2020 
for the following: 
Repairs to equipment $7,600.00 
Special Operations Division Data Equipment $30,000.00 
Spillman (CAD Software) $181,830.00 
 (Funds should be either encumbered in FY20 or carried over) 
11 Replacement Vehicles/Accessories $419,322.00 
 (Don’t know if evaluated by fleet management) 
Beaufort Marine Rescue Squad $10,000.00 
 (Already in the Fy21 budget) 
COVID-19 Supplies $20,000.00 
 (These Supplies are being purchased out of emergency funds)  
Total: $668,752.00 
Variance $515,941.00 
 
Sheriff’s Department, County Council, and Administrator discuss the budget add on items and decide to take action 
at a later date and discuss it more in-depth. 
 
Finance Director Hayes Williams presented the Millage for FY21. 
 
County Operations: FY20 50.7 FY21 50.7 Taxation $106,217,968.00 
Higher Education: FY20 2.4 FY21 2.4 Taxation $4,636,032.00 
Indigent Care: FY20 .8 FY21 .8 Taxation $1,897,448.00 
Economic Development:  FY20 .3 FY21 .3 Taxation $508,594.00 
Rural and Critical Lands: FY20 5.5 FY21 5.5 Taxation $10,649,726.00 
County Debt Service: FY20 5.6 FY21 5.6 Taxation $11,230,700.00 
Bluffton Township FD: FY20 24.1 FY21 24.1 Taxation $15,639,382.00 
Burton FD: FY20 70.3 FY21 70.3 Taxation $5,194,996.00 
Daufuski FD: FY20 62.0 FY21 62.0 Taxation $1,211,046.00 
Lady’s Island/ St. Helena FD: FY20 40.1 FY21 40.1 Taxation $6,199,820.00 
Sheldon FD: FY20 38.5 FY20 38.8 Taxation $1,499,683.00 

18

Item 5.



Finance Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

School District: FY20 114 FY21 114 Taxation: $149,733,105.00 
 
County Administrator, Ashley Jacobs discussed the Next Steps:  
June 8th County Council Meeting- second reading and public hearing 
June 22nd Third Reading and Public Hearing 
CIP/GO Bond Work Session- TBD  
 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 3:38pm.  

 

Ratified by Committee:  
 

 

19

Item 5.



2020-__ 

AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS NOT TO EXCEED$ 822,000 FROM THE 

3% LOCAL ACCOMMODATIONS TAX FUNDS TO PENN CENTER, INC. TO ASSIST 

WITH PHASE I BUILDING PRESERVATION, RENOVATION AND RESTORATION 

OF HISTORIC BUILDINGS ON THE PENN CENTER CAMPUS AND OTHER 

MATTERS RERLATED THERETO 

WHEREAS, Penn Center, Inc. ("Penn") is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization. Its mission 

is to promote, preserve and protect Penn Center's history and culture through education, community 

development and social justice. It operates Penn Center one of the most significant African 

American historical and cultural institutions in existence today. It is a prominent historic tourist 

destination . It is located on Martin Luther King Drive (TMS No. R300016 000 0094 0000). Penn 

seeks financial assistance from the County to fund its efforts to preserve, protect, renovate and 

restore historically significant buildings on Penn Center's campus which currently serve, and will 

continue to serve for years to come, as a destination for tourists, visitors and scholars to Beaufort; 

and 

WHEREAS, to facilitate and guide this effort, Penn has established a two-phase building 

preservation, renovation and restoration plan. Phase I improvements are described on Penn Center 

Building Restoration and Maintenance Plan (Exhibit " A"). This phase is estimated to cost 

approximately $822,000. Penn seeks assistance from the County for this phase of the project; and 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Council finds that it is in the best interest of its citizens, 

residents, visitors and tourists to provide assistance to Penn in this effort. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Beaufort County Council that an 

appropriation to Penn Center, Inc. in an amount not to exceed$ 822,000 is hereby authorized from 

the 3% Local Accommodations Tax fund to assist with Phase I building preservation, renovation 

and restoration as set forth in Exhibit A (collectively the " Work") which is incorporated herein by 

reference. This appropriation is contingent upon each of the following conditions: 

1. Receipt of a properly completed local A-tax application and review of the same 

pursuant to Resolution 2019 /31; 

2. contracts for the Work shall be awarded through the Beaufort County procurement 

process; 

3. Penn shall contract with an architectural/engineering firm hired through a Beaufort County RFQ 

process, to provide architectural review and contract administration services for all work 

which is performed utilizing these funds; 

4. The architectural/engineering firm shall review, approve and submit to Beaufort 

County, directly, all Applications for Payment; 

5. Beaufort County shall retain the funds in their entirety and shall make payment only 

upon receipt of approved Applications for Payment from the architectural/engineering 

firm and only upon the terms specified therein; and 

6.  Funds will be utilized solely for the capital improvement projects which are identified 

in Exhibit " A" and solely for the purposes specified therein; and 

20

Item 6.



7. Penn shall comply with all reporting requirements which Beaufort County recently 

adopted relating to 3% Local A-Tax appropriations which are set forth in Resolution 

2019/31. 

 

DONE this _____ day of _____________2020. 

 

 
COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

 

 

By: __________________________________  

        Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 

 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

 
First Reading:  

Second Reading: 

Public Hearing: 

Third and Final Reading: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

21

Item 6.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Discussion and action item to Amend Ordinance 2019/56 Penn Center Renovations 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Hayes Williams Interim CFO 

30 Minutes 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Ordinance 2019/56 allocated funds for Phase I of the Penn Center Renovations totaling $822,000. The 
ordinance specifies Oceana Design as the architect and assigning responsibility to the firm for reviewing and 
approving invoices.  

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Penn Center is not satisfied with Oceana Design’s work, and requests an amendment to Ordinance 2019/56 
that removes Oceana Design and allows for an RFQ from other architectural firms to be issued in order to 
complete the necessary renovations at Penn Center. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

No new funds required 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends amending the ordinance to have Beaufort County Purchasing issue an RFQ and award the 
contract with input and assistance from Penn Center.  

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to Amend Ordinance 2019/56 to remove Oceana Design and authorize Beaufort County Purchasing to 
issue an RFP for architectural services. 

 

 

 

22

Item 6.



ORDINANCE 2020-_____ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR A METHOD FOR ALLOCATING 

RESERVE ACCOMMODATIONS TAX AND/OR HOSPITALITY TAX 

REVENUES; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.  

 

 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County (the “County”), collects and administers a 3% local accommodations 

tax pursuant to SC Code Sections 4-9-30 and 6-1-500 et seq. and as provided in Beaufort County Code 

Section 66-42 et seq. (the “ATax”); and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Beaufort County Code Section 66-47(c)(1), twenty percent of collections 

over and above those allocated for specific enumerated uses are allocated to establish a reserve fund 

for emergency or unforeseen needs; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County collects and administers a 2% local hospitality tax pursuant to SC Code 

Sections 4-9-30 and 6-1-700 et seq. and as provided in Beaufort County Code Section 66-531 et seq. 

(the “Htax”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Council is desirous of establishing procedures for allocating certain of 

these funds in emergency situations; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL, in meeting 

duly assembled as follows: 

 

1. By approval of a resolution by County Council, funds may be allocated out of ATax and/or 

Htax reserves for permitted use of funds by statute in cases of, a) a near miss of a hurricane, 

b) for response to a declared disaster, and c) for other such targeted needs as determined by 

Council on a case-by-case basis,  

 

 

2. Section 66-44(b) of the Beaufort County Code of Ordinances, entitled “Permitted uses of local 

(3%) accommodations tax funds” is amended to read:  

 “Authorization to utilize any funds from the County of Beaufort, South Carolina, Local 

 Accommodations Tax Account, shall be by ordinance duly adopted by the county council for the 

 County of Beaufort, South Carolina, except for expenditures following an emergency as provided 

 in Ordinance 2020-___, which may be authorized by approval of a resolution.” 

 

3. Beaufort County Code Section 66-537 is amended to read as follows: 

 Sec. 66-537. - Management and use of hospitality tax. 

(a) Fund the approved annual operating expenditures of the program at an amount not to exceed 

eight percent of the funds collected; 

(b) Allocate the remaining balance through the county’s annual budget process; except 

(c) County Council may make emergency appropriations as provided in 2020 Ordinance number 

____ by approval of a resolution. 

 

ADOPTED IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED this ____ day of __________ 2020.  

 

23

Item 7.



COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST:       First Reading: 

Second Reading: 

_______________________________   Public Hearing: 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council     Third and Final Reading: 
 

24

Item 7.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Accommodations Tax/ Hospitality Tax reserve fund ordinance 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee 09/21/2020 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Hayes Williams 

15 minutes 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Beaufort County Council wishes to have a method to access ATax and HTax funds in case of a disaster, 
pandemic or other occurrence on a case by case basis.  

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

This ordinance would allow County Council to approve a resolution to allocate ATax and/or HTax reserves/ 
funds for purposes that are permitted under their related statute. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Funding would be available from fund balance related to ATax or HTax funds. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends Council to approve the ordinance. 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve the County ordinance related to the ATax/ Htax reserve funding. 

 

 

 

25

Item 7.



 

 
  

Agenda Item Summary  

Item Title:  

  Professional Services Agreement with Greater Beaufort Port Royal Convention and Visitor’s Bureau 

  

Council Committee:  

  Finance 

  

Meeting Date:  

  September 21, 2020 

  

Committee Presenter (Name and Title):  

  Kurt Taylor, County Attorney, Robb Wells | President & CEO Greater Beaufort-Port Royal CVB 

  

Issues for Consideration:  

  Robb Wells, President & CEO of the Greater Beaufort-Port Royal Convention and Visitors Bureau, wishes to enter into a 
Designated Management Organization (DMO) agreement with the county for the purpose of promoting tourism. The Greater 
Beaufort-Port Royal Convention and Visitors Bureau is designated by county ordinance as a DMO, and receives funding each year. 
 

  

Points to Consider:  

  

 It is prudent to enter into an agreement which spells out the duties and responsibilities of both parties. 

Funding & Liability Factors:  

  

 Section 66-29 of the Beaufort County Code of Ordinances provides for funding as follows: To be in compliance with S.C. Code of Law, 
Title 6 Chapter 4, the state (2%) accommodations tax shall be allocated in the following manner: (1) Be in compliance with the Ordinance No. 

89-9; however, the first $25,000.00 of revenues received from the accommodations tax will, by law, be placed in the county's general 
fund with no restrictions on the expenditures.(2)Five percent of the balance must be allocated to the general fund with no restrictions 
on expenditures.(3)Thirty percent of the remaining balance is split with half going to the Greater Beaufort-Port Royal Convention and 
Visitors Bureau and half going to the Hilton Head - Bluffton Chamber of Commerce as the council hereby designates the Greater 
Beaufort-Port Royal Convention and Visitors Bureau and the Hilton Head - Bluffton Chamber of Commerce as the designated 
marketing organizations (DMOs). 

  

Council Options:  

  

 Approve or disapprove the agreement 
  
  

  

Recommendation:  

  

 Approve the agreement 
  
  

  
  

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL   

26

Item 8.



  

-  DO NOT EXCEED ONE PAGE -  
Created January 2019  

27

Item 8.



 

File:  5610.0004 Page 1 of 9 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) Agreement for Professional Services  
     )   For 

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT  ) Destination Marketing Organization 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, (Agreement) in entered into 

between Beaufort County, a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina (“County”) 

and the Greater Beaufort Port Royal Convention and Visitor’s Bureau, a nonprofit 

corporation existing under the laws of South Carolina (“CVB”). 

 

INTRODUCTION 

  

 WHEREAS, tourism plays a vibrant role in the social, cultural and economic 
activities of the citizens of Beaufort County; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the tourism marketplace is highly competitive, and will become more so 
as other regional areas strive to capture their share of the tourism market; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, because the County recognizes the tourism industry’s contribution to 
citizens of the County and the benefits that come from being a highly recognized tourism 
destination, the County is committed to becoming a first-class tourism destination and 
desires to take a leadership role in increasing tourism’s contribution to the future growth 
and development of Beaufort County; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Accommodations Tax is a state and local tax that is levied on 
businesses in the lodging industry and South Carolina Code 6-4-10(3) requires thirty 
percent of the accommodations tax received by the state to be awarded to a nonprofit 
corporation approved by the County as its Destination Marketing Organization (“DMO”); 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, those Accommodation Tax Funds are allocated to a special fund to be 
used only for advertising and promotion of tourism activities and to increase tourist 
attendance, (the Promotional Fund”); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Promotional Fund is not part of the general fund of the County; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, The CVB is the County’s approved DMO for the unincorporated area 
of the County north of the Broad River; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the CVB is a nonprofit corporation governed by a Board of Directors as 
required by the South Carolina Non-Profit Act (“ACT”) in which the County has an 
appointed representative on the CVB Board of Directors as provided by CVB bylaws; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the tourism industry is changing as short-term rentals and related 
programs serve an increasing number of visitors to the DMO market area; and, 

28

Item 8.



 

File:  5610.0004 Page 2 of 9 

 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined that entering into a written agreement with 
the CVB to define its role as the DMO is in the best interest of the County to satisfy certain 
governmental compliance and operating standards; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the CVB desires to enter into this Agreement to delineate its 
responsibilities and expectations between the parties and to increase opportunities for 
cooperation with the County. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1         Mutual Compliance with Laws.  The County and the CVB agree that each 

of them shall adhere to all applicable laws which govern the activities of their respective 

entities.  These laws include: 

 

a. Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 

b. The Age Discrimination Employment Act of 1967, 

c. The Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 

d. The Equal Pay Act of 1963, 

e. The Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, 

f. The Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, 

g. The South Carolina Wage Act, 

h. The South Carolina Worker’s Compensation Act, 

i. All laws related the South Carolina Accommodations Act, 

j. The South Carolina Non-Profit Corporation Act, and, 

k. All laws administered and enforced by the South Carolina Department of 

Revenue and the Internal Revenue Service.   

    

2.     CVB Responsibilities.  

 

 2.1 Audit.  The CVB agrees to provide an independent auditor’s report to the 

County on an annual basis with regard to each of its fiscal years.  The audit report will be 

delivered within 3 months of the end of each fiscal year. 

 

 The following standards shall apply to the audit and/or auditor.  The audit shall be 

conducted in conformity with the statements, rules, policies, and procedures set forth by 

the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. (“AICPA”). 

29

Item 8.



 

File:  5610.0004 Page 3 of 9 

 

 The County intends to require that all non-profits receiving more than $25,000 per 

year from the County to comply with the auditing and reporting required herein. 

 

a. The audit will be performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing 

standards (the “GAAS”). 

 

b. The auditor will comply with all applicable statements on auditing standards 

(the “SAS’) that are issued by the Auditor’s Standing Board of the AICPA. 

 
c. The auditor will maintain malpractice insurance in an amount equal to at least 

One Million Dollars and No/100’s ($1,000,000). 

 

d. The auditor will provide evidence of successful completion of the peer review 

process approved by the AICPA. 

 

2.2. DMO Report.    The DMO agrees to produce and deliver to the County on 

a biannual basis a schedule of revenues and expenses for each fiscal year (the “Report”). 

The DMO Report revenue shall include all accommodations taxes received from the 

County and/or the State of South Carolina and other governmental revenues. The report 

to be delivered with a statement signed by the President and the Board Chair stating that 

the report is accurate and complete to the best of their knowledge. 

 

2.3  Auditor.  The CVB agrees to interview several accounting firms periodically 

but not less often than each three years.  The County’s representative shall participate in 

the interview process with recommendations to the CVB Board. 

 

2.4  Tax Returns.  The CVB agrees that the federal and state tax returns shall be 

prepared and filed by a tax professional that will execute the returns as a tax preparer as 

defined by the Internal Revenue Service, and/or their regulations.  Copies to be delivered 

to the County upon CVB Board receipt. 

 

2.5 Promotional Fund.  The CVB as DMO agrees to manage and direct the 

expenditure of the Promotional Fund pursuant to the requirements set forth herein, and 

in compliance with SC law, County policy, and good business practices.  For purposes of 

this Agreement, the Promotional Fund shall be those Accommodations Tax Funds 

collected within the boundaries of the DMO area for which the CVB is DMO as previously 

described herein.  The CVB shall be eligible to apply for annual supplemental grants from 

the Accommodations Tax pool, from the emergency fund established by the County, and 

from any fund created by pooling hospitality funds.  All public funds received by the CVB 

will be subject to auditing and reporting requirements of this Agreement.   

  

30

Item 8.



 

File:  5610.0004 Page 4 of 9 

2.6 Process:  The CVB shall submit to the County a budget of planned 

expenditures as part of its Promotional and Marketing plan.  The budget will be provided 

not more than 90 days after County Council notifies CVB of the amount of funds available 

to CVB by the County. The County may appoint a Member of its choosing to the CVB 

Board with qualifications determined by the County but subject to the CVB Bylaws.  The 

County appointee may not hold an elected office (per the CVB Bylaws) and should be a 

person dedicated to the promotion of travel and tourism in Northern Beaufort County. 

 

2.7 Inspection Rights. The County Manager (or a designee) may, upon reasonable 

notice, inspect the necessary financial records of the CVB to verify compliance with this 

Agreement. 

 

2.8 Dispute.  If after good faith efforts, the County and CVB are unable to agree 

that all expenditures from the Promotional Fund are in compliance with the then current 

requirements of South Carolina Code Section 6-4-10(3) then the parties shall jointly select 

and retain a law firm to deliver a third party opinion to determine if such expenditures are 

in compliance with South Carolina Law governing such expenditures.  The legal opinion 

form and content shall adhere to the guidelines, to the extent applicable, of the South 

Carolina Third Party Legal Opinion Report approved by the Corporate, Banking and 

Securities Delegates of the South Carolina Bar on January 22, 2015.  The Legal Opinion 

expense shall be borne by the party that does not prevail in the dispute. 

 

2.9 Bylaws.  The CVB agrees not to amend nor modify its Bylaws to eliminate the 

assigned Board member designee of the County. 

 

3.  Performance Standards. 

 

3.1  DMO Standard.  The County and the CVB agree that Destinations 

International (DI) organization is the industry leader is setting standards and 

accreditations for destination marketing organizations.  The County agrees to encourage 

all organizations receiving DMO funding to meet this same standard.  The CVB agrees to 

maintain its operational and management standards in accordance with the DI standards 

during the term of this Agreement. 

 

3.2  DMO’s Industry Metrics.  The CVB will provide to the County with certain 

tourism metrics such as: 

 

a. revenue per available hotel room and short-term rental unit; 

  

b. occupancy per available hotel room and short-term rental unit; 

 

c. visitor spending studies; 

 

31

Item 8.



 

File:  5610.0004 Page 5 of 9 

d. return on investment for visitor spending per dollar of investment; 

 

e. local tax revenues generated by visitors; 

 

f. number of visitors; 

 

g. digital marketing metrics and results; 

 

h. update on its public relation efforts to include media impressions and the dollar 

equivalent for the media impressions. 

 

As metrics change and the industry evolves, the CVB agrees to provide the County 

with the metrics and reports that reasonably represent the intent of the metrics described 

above. 

 

4. County’s Industry Metrics.  The County will provide to the CVB certain tourism 

metrics such as: 

 

a. the number of hotels and hotel rooms licensed by the County to operate, 

 

b. the number of residences including condominiums licensed as available to rent 

to visitors in the County and an estimate of the number of unlicensed 

residences and condominiums available to rent to visitors in the County, 

 

c. the number of partial residence facilities licensed to rent to visitors in the County 

and an estimate of the number of unlicensed partial residences available to rent 

in the County, 

 

d. the number of campgrounds sites and RV park sites licensed to rent to visitors 

in the County and an estimate of the number of unlicensed campground sites 

and RV park sites available to rent to visitors in the County.   

 

5.  CVB Covenants and Warranties. 

 

5.1  The CVB covenants and represents that it has all necessary licenses required 

to enter into and fully perform its obligations under this Agreement.   

 

5.2  The CVB covenants and represents that it will comply with all state 

Accommodations Tax laws in administering the Promotional Fund.  

 

5.3  In addition to Section 1 above, the CVB will comply with County Code of 

Ordinances Sections 66-29 and 66-44. 

 

32

Item 8.



 

File:  5610.0004 Page 6 of 9 

 

 

6. County Covenants and Representations.  

  

6.1  The County hereby covenants and represents that it will comply with all state 

Accommodations Tax laws in administering all such funds to the CVB and other non-profit 

corporations. 

 

6.2  The County hereby covenants and represents that it shall comply with all such 

laws and procedures in a manner not to discriminate against one non-profit corporation 

over another non-profit corporation. 

 

6.3  The County hereby covenants and represents that it shall cause the 

Promotional Fund to promptly be paid so that the CVB may implement its budget and 

marketing plan. 

 

6.4  The County hereby covenants and represents not to disturb, violate, request 

to be violated, any laws, loan covenants, policies and procedures, including but not limited 

to, all federal and state laws and the South Carolina Non-Profit Act which effect the CVB. 

 

7.  Term.  The CVB and the County agree and expect that continued quality performance 

of a DMO for the portion of the unincorporated area of Beaufort County north of the Broad 

River is desirable.  The initial term of this Agreement shall be effective as of the date 

executed by both parties and shall continue from the date below for a period of 5 years 

to end on June 30, 2025.  The provisions of this Agreement can be extended for one year 

additional terms by the written consent of both parties executed more than thirty days 

before the expiration of the initial or any renewal term. 

 

8.  Expiration.  Either party may elect to terminate the Agreement after June, 2026 by 

providing the other party notice in June of the year preceding the year in which termination 

is desired. Requirements of termination notice shall include:  A description of the reason 

the party desires to terminate the Agreement, plus the following:  If by CVB, a summary 

description of how transfer of responsibilities will be managed.   If by County, a description 

of the process and requirements that will apply to selecting a successor DMO to assume 

the responsibilities including a timetable indicating when a replacement DMO has been 

approved.  

 

9.  Termination.  If the CVB fails to perform those obligations stated herein, the County 

may provide written notice to the CVB of the deficiency and the CVB shall have one 

hundred eighty (180) days to cure the deficiency.  If the deficiency is not cured and the 

CVB has not presented a plan for cure that is acceptable to the County, then County shall 

have the right to terminate the contract by providing a ninety (90) day written notice to the 

CVB.  In addition, the County shall have the right to terminate the Agreement by providing 

33

Item 8.



 

File:  5610.0004 Page 7 of 9 

ninety (90) day notice if the auditor or DMAI determines fraud has occurred in the 

operation of the CVB. 

 The CVB may terminate by giving a written six-month notice to the County. 

 

10.  Updates. The County acknowledges that the DMO makes a minimum of two public 

presentations to the Finance committee of the County each fiscal year. The CVB agrees 

to report to the committee on two additional occasions at the request of the committee as 

well as to any other committee. Provided, such presentations are scheduled as to not 

interfere with any other presentation the DMO is making to a governmental body. 

 

11. Miscellaneous. 

 

11.1  Headings.  Headings to paragraphs in this Agreement shall not interpret or 

alter the meaning of the words in the respective paragraph, nor any other provision of this 

Agreement  

 

11.2  Notices:  All notices to each party to this Agreement shall be in writing, and 

sent as follows: 

 

 County: Beaufort County, South Carolina 

   Attn:  Ashley Jacobs, County Administrator 

   P.O. Drawer 1228 

Beaufort, 29901 

 

 CVB:  Greater Beaufort Port Royal Convention & Visitors Bureau 

   Attn:  Robb Wells, President 

   P.O. Box 501 

    Beaufort, SC  2991 

 

11.3 Form of Notice:  All notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall 

be sent certified mail with signature required. 

 

11.4 Merger / Amendment and Waiver:  Except as herein noted, this Agreement 

contains all the terms of all agreements, oral and written, between the parties, and it is 

the only document containing all such terms  Except as herein noted, this Agreement 

merges all prior discussions, negotiations, contracts, agreements and understandings 

between the County and the CVB concerning the subject matter described herein. 

 

This Agreement may only be amended or modified by a written instrument signed 

by a duly authorized signatory of the County and the CVB. 

 

34

Item 8.



 

File:  5610.0004 Page 8 of 9 

Forbearance by either party from enforcing the strict terms of this Agreement shall 

not be a waiver of any term of this Agreement, nor shall forbearance entitle the other party 

to rely upon such forbearance in the future. 

 

Exceptions:  The CVB is encouraged to apply for County Funding from the portion 

of 2% Atax, 3% Atax, hospitality tax (Htax) and such programs as the County offers now 

or in the future to support tourism.  To the extent the CVB receives funds from any of 

those programs, the terms and conditions of such funding will be as determined in the 

grant making process and shall not be govern by this Agreement nor shall such grant 

relieve the CVB of its obligations agreed to herein. 

 

11.5. Independent Contractor Status:  By entering into this Agreement, the CVB 

does not become a servant, agent, or employee of County, and at all times shall remain 

an independent contractor.  This Agreement shall not be deemed to create any joint 

venture, partnership, or common enterprise between CVB and County. 

 

11.6 Attorneys’ Fees, Dispute Resolution.  In the event of a legal dispute 

between the parties the prevailing party in any dispute shall be entitled to an award of all 

reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs from the non-prevailing party. 

 

Before any legal proceeding, the parties first attempt resolution by Mediation by a 

Mediator jointly selected by the parties prior to any Court proceeding in the Common 

Pleas Court of Beaufort County, South Carolina.  The moving party to give written notice 

of their designated Mediator and the opposing party to designate their Mediator within 

fifteen days.  Upon the failure of a joint Mediator to be agreed to in writing within fifteen 

days of the opposing party making their designation, the two designated Mediators to 

select a third Mediator and the Mediation process shall then commence within thirty days.  

The fees and expenses of the Mediation to be equally divided between the parties. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

  

35

Item 8.



 

File:  5610.0004 Page 9 of 9 

Executed on _______________, 2020. 

 

 

 

________________________ ) County of Beaufort, SC 

Witness 1 – Signature  ) 

________________________ ) 

Witness 1 – Printed Name  ) By:  __________________________ 

     )  Chairman 

________________________ ) 

Witness 2 – Signature  ) Attest:  __________________________ 

________________________ )  County Manager 

Witness 2 – Printed Name  ) 

 

    

 

________________________ ) Greater Beaufort Port Royal 

Witness 1 – Signature  ) Convention and Visitors Bureau 

________________________ ) 

Witness 1 – Printed Name  ) By:  __________________________ 

     )  Board Chairman 

________________________ ) 

Witness 2 – Signature  ) Attest:  __________________________ 

________________________ )  Board Secretary 

Witness 2 – Printed Name  ) 

 

         

 
    

36

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Distance Learning Grants Discussion 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee 09/21/2020 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Hayes Williams Interim CFO 

30 minutes 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Due to the COVID 19 pandemic Beaufort County residents need help related to distance learning. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

It has been established that there are issues related to distance learning. Beaufort County would like to 
earmark $200,000 from its general fund balance to award grants to applicants to assist with the problems 
related to distance learning. The County has contacted Coastal Community Foundation to help develop a fund 
agreement. The County will need to provide specific criteria for who will be eligible for grant funding and how 
the funds may be used. Once the agreement is in place and the funds are made available CCF will advertise 
the program, manage the applications, and disburse the funds. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

$200,000 from general fund balance 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

An outside independent agency would handle the applications, awards and compliance of the grants. 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Finance Committee approve the ordinance for $200,000 for distance learning. 

 

 

 

37

Item 9.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Discussion Item Internal Auditor 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee 09/21/2020 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Hayes Williams Interim CFO 

15 minutes 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Followup on the RFP for the Internal Audit of Beaufort County 

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

We had two responses to RFP 082720 for Baker Tilly (fee not to exceed $190,000) and Elliot Davis (provided 
hourly fees but want negotiate a fee once the final scope of the work is agreed upon. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

1000100-51160 Professional Services $75,000  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Narrow internal audit scope to cover the items that are needed from Council and the Finance Committee.  

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Council and the Finance Committee will need to have a discussion to limit the scope of the engagement to stay 
within budget and meet their objectives related to the internal audit. 

 

 

 

38

Item 10.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Internal Audit Discussion 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee 09/21/2020 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Hayes Williams Interim CFO 

15 Minutes 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Update on the timeline of the CAFR. 

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

There was a discussion with the audit partner for the engagement. Tentatively Mauldin and Jenkins should 
begin their fieldwork in mid- November. They project that best case scenario that they could have a draft 
audit report by December 31. There are factors that could cause delay such as staff changes, and unknown 
COVID 19 issues. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

10001111-51160 Professional Services $65,500 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

None 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

None 

 

 

 

39

Item 11.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Budget Book Status discussion 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee 09/21/2020 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Hayes Williams Interim CFO 

10 Minutes 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

In 2020 Beaufort County prepared its first line item budget. County employees are currently drafting the 
budget book are around 70% Complete.  

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Since the approval of the line item budget, County staff has been in the process of drafting the budget book. 
During the drafting there have been continuity issues and staffing issues.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

None 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff is making Council aware of where we are in the process and our anticipated completion. 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

None 

 

 

40

Item 12.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Review and discussion of DMO’s and Chambers submission’s 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee 09/21/2020 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Hayes Williams 

45 Minutes 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The County Council and Finance Committee have requested a detail accounting from the DMO’s and 
Chambers for the expenditures related to their accommodations tax funding. 

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Submissions were made and sent to Council for review. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

None but it depends on the Committee action. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

This is a discussion item. 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

It is up to the Committee for action. 

 

 

41

Item 13.



GROUP
TRAVEL LEADER

Q)

Invoice
2020-15497

Invoice Date

1/7/2020

Bill To:

Linda Jeffries

Greater Beaufort-Port Royal CVB
P.O. Box 501

Beaufort, SC 29901 United States (US)

Advertiser:

Greater Beaufort-Port Royal CVB

Terms

Net 30

Payment Due

2/7/2020

Pub. Issue Year PC Number Ad Size Color Freq. Net Amount

Group Travel Leader Jan 2020 1/2 Page 4.Color ix $2,225.00 $2,225.00

$2,225.00

Total: 1
.  $2,225.00

For questions about this invoice; accounting@grouptraveileader.com

Thank you for your business.

42

Item 13.



43

Item 13.



44

Item 13.



45

Item 13.



843.645.4200 I adamsDutcloor.com 1 174 boardwalk drive, suite k. ridgeland, sc 29936

I adams INVOICE TERMS NET 30 DAYS

i8',llb£>a^

dD

BILL TO:

Greater Beaufort - Port Royal CVB

PC Box 501
Beaufort, SC 29901

INVOICE NUMBER:

INVOICE DATE:

CUSTOMER #:

CONTRACT #:

SALES PERSON;

142044

7/1/2019

9003571

14190156

Martha DeMaio

Attention:

ADVERTISER/BRAND:

CUSTOMER P.O.#:

Greater Beaufort - Port Royal CVB /

7/1/2019 - 7/31/2019141901
Contract / Period

Builetin US 17-2120

Bulletin US 17 Greenpond - P3315

Bulletin 195 Walterboro - P4699

$700.00

$700.00

$900.00

TOTAL DUE $ 2,300.00

TOTAL INVCMOUNlQMigjmp
A ohBl I I KAlMMlAlir—

remittance

INVOICE DATE:

CUSTOMER NAME:

CUSTOMER #:

INVOICE NUMBER:

7/1/2019

Greater Beaufort - Port Royal CVB

9003571

1420447

CONTRACT#:

SALES PERSON:

14190156

Martha DeMaio

TOTAL DUE $ 2,300.00

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS

To ensure proper credit of your payment, piease include this remittance.
_  I I , » j, n/-i o«.< OAOI/in rhirann II Anf-iRn-9140

46

Item 13.



47

Item 13.



48

Item 13.



49

Item 13.



50

Item 13.



51

Item 13.



52

Item 13.



53

Item 13.



54

Item 13.



55

Item 13.



56

Item 13.



57

Item 13.



58

Item 13.



59

Item 13.



60

Item 13.



61

Item 13.



62

Item 13.



63

Item 13.



64

Item 13.



65

Item 13.



66

Item 13.



67

Item 13.



68

Item 13.



69

Item 13.



70

Item 13.



71

Item 13.



jackRabbit^^ , a Simpleview Company

Simpleview, LLC
8950 N. Oracle Road

Tucson, AZ 85704 USA

TO: Greater Beaufort-Port Royal Convention an
PO Box 501

Beaufort, SC 29S02

Invoice

Re beaufortsc.org

Invoice Date Invoice H

11/1/2019 10550

Rep Terms

RG Net 3D

Qty Item Code Description Price Each Amount

Beaufort SC - Insig.. Annual Lease Fee for Insight Direct 3,250.00 3,250.00

THANKYOU! TOTAL USD 3,250.00

Please make check payable to: SIMPLEVIEW, LLC | 8950 N. Oracle Road | Tucson, AZ 85704 USA

Billing Questions? Contact us atbilling@jackrabbitsystems.coTn or 1-505-982-2233

72

Item 13.



73

Item 13.



Greater Beaufort-Port Royal CVB

TRANSACTION REPORT

July 2019-June 2020

DATE TRANSACTION NUM

TYPE

NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT SPLIT amount balance

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES

61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES

61300-ADVERTISING

61320 - ELECTRONIC MEDIA

11/20/2019 Bill 014670

11/20/2019 Bill

12/16/2019 Bill

12/16/2019 Bill

01/23/2020 Bill

01/23/2020 Bill

02/14/2020 Bill

02/14/2020 Bill

014670

014814

014814

014987

014987

015107

015107

Ferebee

Lane

Ferebee

Lane

Ferebee

Lane

Ferebee

Lane

Ferebee

Lane

Ferebee

Lane

Ferebee

Lane

Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 -

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:61320 -

ELECTRONIC MEDIA

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 -

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:61320 -

ELECTRONIC MEDIA

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 -

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING;61320 -

ELECTRONIC MEDIA

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 -

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:61320 -

ELECTRONIC MEDIA

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 -

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:61320 -

ELECTRONIC MEDIA

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 -

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:61320 -

ELECTRONIC MEDIA

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES;61000 -

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTiSING:61320 -

ELECTRONIC MEDIA

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 -

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTIS1NG:61320 -

ELECTRONIC MEDIA

Accounts 2,882.36 2.882.36
Payable

(A/P)

Accounts 1,235.29 4.117.65
Payable

(A/P)

Accounts 3,294.12 7,411.77
Payable

(A/P)
A  ♦ 8,823.53Accounts 1,411.76

Payable

(/VP)
A  « .111 77 9,235.30Accounts 411.7/

Payable

(A/P)
A  4 17C/7 9,411.77Accounts 176.47

Payable

(A/P)

Accounts 2,162.41 H'^^'^.IS
Payable

(A/P)

Accounts 926.76 12,500.93
Payable

(Aff>)

Total for61320 - ELECTRONIC MEDIA $12,500.93

Total for 61300 - ADVERTISING $12,500.93

Total for 61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES $12,500.93

Total for 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES $12,500.93

TOTAL $12,500.93

Accrual Basis Thursday, August 27,2020 12:59 PM GMT-04:00
1/1

74

Item 13.



75

Item 13.



76

Item 13.



77

Item 13.



78

Item 13.



79

Item 13.



80

Item 13.



81

Item 13.



82

Item 13.



83

Item 13.



84

Item 13.



85

Item 13.



86

Item 13.



87

Item 13.



88

Item 13.



89

Item 13.



90

Item 13.



91

Item 13.



92

Item 13.



Greater Beaufort-Port Royal Convention and Visitors Bureau

Annual Financial Report

June 30,2019

93

Item 13.



94

Item 13.



95

Item 13.



96

Item 13.



97

Item 13.



98

Item 13.



99

Item 13.



100

Item 13.



101

Item 13.



102

Item 13.



Robb Wells <robbw@beaufortsc.org>

Mailchimp Receipt
1 message

No Reply - Mailchimp <no-reply@mailchimp.com> Tue, Jul 30, 2019 at 2:45 AM
Reply-To. No Reply - Mailchimp <no-reply@mailchimp.com>
To: robbw@beaufortsc.org

I

Your order has been processed,

Order l\/IC06066769

Processed on Jul 30, 2019 02:45 am Eastern Time.

Monthly plan

60001 - 75000 subscribers.

Mailchimp Pro

Maiichimp Pro

 /l/j

$375.00

$199.00

Discounts

Save 10% for 3 months on Mailchimp account charges by enabling two-factor authentication

$574.00

Taxes

State and Local Tax

103

Item 13.



104

Item 13.



105

Item 13.



106

Item 13.



107

Item 13.



108

Item 13.



109

Item 13.



110

Item 13.



111

Item 13.



112

Item 13.



113

Item 13.



114

Item 13.



115

Item 13.



116

Item 13.



117

Item 13.



118

Item 13.



119

Item 13.



120

Item 13.



121

Item 13.



122

Item 13.



2020 RENEWAL

MEMBERSHIP INVOICE
IC.«J SL'S ASSOCIfiTiOK

Invoice: 82230

Greater Beaufort-Port Royal Convention &
Visitors Bureau

PO Box 501

713 Craven Street

Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-0501

Attn: Linda Jeffries

Invoice Date: 10/23/2019 GHoS .

Membership Invoice (01/01/2020 - 12/31/2020)

Product Total

Membership Type: Travel $580.00

ABA Foundation (Optional)
Supports the motorcoach travel and tour Industry with research and scholarships.

$40.00

Total Invoice Amouni i  $620.00

Total Payment Amouni $0.00

Total Balance Due $620.00

Three Easy Ways to Renew Today:

1. ONLINE: www.buses.org. select Mv ABA, enter member company username & password, and select Make Payment,
then press the drop down button Show Balances For and select the appropriate year.

2. CONTACT US; at 800-283-2877 or email us at membership®buses.orn.

3. RETURN WITH FORM (Mail, email or fax this form with payment): Send dues check payments to:

American Bus Association, Attn: Membership, 111 K St. NE, 9th Fl., Washington, DC 20002

S^^^dosed is my check made payable in U.S. dollars to the "American Bus Association" for $Kiosed is my check made payable in U.S. dollars to the "American Bus Association" for $
ov

□ Please charge VISA MASTERCARD AMERICAN EXPRESS $

Card Number Exp. Date:

Invoice Number .Cardholder Name (please print) .Signature:

American Bus Association Federal Tax ID: 53-0114680)

•iote: As a result of ABA's lobbying efforts, membership dues may be deductible as ordinary and necessary business expenses. The deductible
lortion of your membership dues investment is 88%. Membership dues are not tax-deductible as charitable contributions. However, the
'ptional contribution to ABA Foundation may be deductible as charitable contribution.

>merican Bus Association, 111 K St, NE, 9th Floor, Washington DC 20002
hone: 1-800-283-2877 | Email: membership@buses.org | Fax: 202-842-0850 123

Item 13.



124

Item 13.



125

Item 13.



126

Item 13.



127

Item 13.



128

Item 13.



Kennickell
► Group

1700 East President Street

Savannah, GA 31404
Phone: (912) 233-4532
Email: tdurham@kennlckell.com

Greater Beaufort - Port Royal CVB
Rob Wells

P.O. Box 501
Beaufort, SC 29901

INVOICE

Invoice # 1904162011

Invoice Date 6/28/19

Date Shipped

Ship Via KPC Local Truck

Salesperson David Rosenblum

Terms Net 30

Job Number 1904162

P.O. Number

Quantity Description
158 Fulfillment Mailing - Inkjet envelope, laser & fold letter

Insert letter and guide into envelope, seal
Sort, bundle, mail
Foreign Postage
Postage
Postage Received

Unit Price Amount

$168.72

$17.40
$115.40

-$115.40

tiv

Ask us about precision cut wall art and signage, vehicle wraps and
banners with our new HP 3500; like no other in the Southeast!

Subtotal

Pay online at www.kennickeU.com

Sales Tax

Total Due $186.12

129

Item 13.



130

Item 13.



131

Item 13.



132

Item 13.



133

Item 13.



134

Item 13.



135

Item 13.



136

Item 13.



137

Item 13.



138

Item 13.



139

Item 13.



140

Item 13.



141

Item 13.



142

Item 13.



143

Item 13.



144

Item 13.



145

Item 13.



146

Item 13.



147

Item 13.



148

Item 13.



149

Item 13.



150

Item 13.



151

Item 13.



152

Item 13.



ALABAMA
KED1A GROUP

3102 Walker Ridge Dr NW

Walker. Ml 49544

Advertising Irrvolce

Invo[ce800l}2584710

. Business Unit; 36500

1  BtUivPcrM 2| A d»9ftaof/CtontName

05/01/2020 -05/31/2020 GREATER PORT ROYAL CONVENTION AND VISIT
a UBi/tQ OaM 4l AdverthefAccountt 5

CtatomorAccoiMd $

06/31/2020 1000901287 1000901287

fi
Tci4iAmeufi Om 7 'UntpB^cdAjnoijnl

8
ferns ofPjymerV g| ^

$45,000.00 $0.00 Upon Receipt 1

in
1  CtjrrtrtPtfM

11
1  30 C>sr» 11 60 Oay* 1ll « 0^

$46,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Drs bi

GREATER PORT ROYAL

CONVENTION AND VISITORS

BUREAU

PO BOX 910

BEAUFORT. SO 29901 Customer Service Inquiries;1-877-241-7578

al-invoicesupport@advancelocal.com

Liloate liil Ad # Llll Product iilj PO/Description H Times LlZJ Units liiJ Rate Llii Amount

05/31 0009622803 Audience Extension VideoYouTubeTrueVlew/Audience

Extension

14,000.00

05/31 0009622808 Search Enterprise Search 10,000.00

05/31 0009622812 SMO • Paid Social Media FB !G 11,000.00

05/31 0009622816 Audience Extension Connected TV Video/Audience Extension 10,000.00

Please remember to include the bottom portion of page 1 with your payment. Thank You!

-yooo'o

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN LOWER PORTION \A/ITTH YOUR REMITTANCE

153

Item 13.



154

Item 13.



^meredith
1716 Locust Street
Des Moines, lA 50309

Invoice

Bill To:

FEREBEELANE

3 N LAURENS STREET
GREENVILLE, SC 29601

lnvoic^#_
20123369

Terms Customer#
NET 30 94829

Invoice Date

63/13/2020
10 Num

'000519

internal Ref

OPP-0367964

Advertiser: Brand:
BEAUFORT CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

NatiS'Full Page 4-Color COASTAL LIVING THE ESCAPE ISSUE-SPRING 2020
Page
"9

NEP

1.0

Net Amount

5.000.00

Additional Invoice Information:

Comments:

SubTotal

Billing Revision
Revised Net Amount

5,000.00

0.00

5,000.00

Questions? Cail 1-866-808-4807
Payments

Remittances May Be Sent Via:
Regular Mall
Meredith Corporation
PO Box 730148
DALLAS, TX 75373-0148

ACH or Wire

Bank Name: JPM Chase
Bank Address: One Chase Plaza, Chicago IL 60603 USA
Account Name: Meredith Funding Corporation
Account No: 675525042
ACH Routing #: 071000013
Wire Routing #: 021000021
Swift Code: CHASUS33
Remittance: Wire.RemittanceNMG@meredith.com

Balance Due 5,000.00
USD

'zrz, bO
155

Item 13.



156

Item 13.



157

Item 13.



158

Item 13.



159

Item 13.



V

Touchpoint Communications, LLC
522 King Street
Charleston, SO 29403

Invoice

Bill To:

Beaufort Port Royal CVB
Robb Wells

Greater Beaufort/Port Royal CVB
PO Box 501

Beaufort, SO 29901

Invoice #:

Invoice Date:

Due Date:

Case:

P.O. Number:

1398

1/6/20

1/6/20

Description Hours/Qty Rate Amount

Monthly PR retainer for January. Work plan for first official month of
engagement includes work on PR research visit, notes and plan
development for review with client this month; cultivation of media leads
as they come in and planning for proactive outreach; researching best
media showcases/conferences for Beaufort to participate in; updating
digital media kit; weekly client account management calls; additional
help as needed. Work product provided in December (pre conference)
included pitch to Macaroni Mom on roundup of family friendly
destinations; Group Travel Leader; Readers Digest "most peaceful
places on earth." Drafted new copy for blogs (Alabama Media Group).
Outreached to key media/partners to alert them to our openness to
collaboration on media tours, etc.

2,000.00 2,000.00

Total $2,000.00

Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due $2,000.00

160

Item 13.



161

Item 13.



162

Item 13.



163

Item 13.



164

Item 13.



165

Item 13.



166

Item 13.



167

Item 13.



SK Signs & Designs

77 James F Byrnes St

Beaufort, SC 29907

(843) 271-9666

Accounts@DigitalSKAssoc.com

http://www.dlgitalskassoc.com SIGNS 8c DESIGNS

BILL TO

Visit Beaufort, Port Royal & The

Sea Islands

INVOICE 3169

DATE 09/30/2019 TERMS Due on receipt

DUE DATE 09/30/2019

DESCRIPTION

Digital Print Graphic
Re-Print of "inner coastal" Digital Print Graphic with Laminate for wall above
desk (10.3sq/ft)

QTY RATE AMOUNT

1  76.77 76-.77T

Installation

N'o Charge

SUBTOTAL

TAX

TOTAL

TOTAL DUE

1  0.00 0.00

76.77

82,14

$82.14

168

Item 13.



169

Item 13.



170

Item 13.



171

Item 13.



172

Item 13.



173

Item 13.



Greater Beaufort-Port Royal CVB

TRANSACTION REPORT

July 2019-June 2020

DATE TRANSACTION NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT SPLIT AMOUNT BALANCE

TYPE

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES

61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES

61300-ADVERTISING

613820-SEO

07/30/2019 Bill Ferel>ee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

910.00 910.00

07/30/2019 Bill Ferebee

Lane

Job 006532 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES;61300 - ADVERTISING:613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

90.00 1.000.00

09/03/2019 Bill Ferebee

Lane

INV# 014227 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES;61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISiNG:613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

90.00 1,090.00

09/03/2019 Bill
■

Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING;613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

910.00 2.000.00

10/02/2019 Bill 014384 Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

90.00 2.090.00

10/02/2019 Bill 014384 Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:613820 - Payable

SEO (AiT)

910.00 3,000.00

10/28/2019 Bill INV# 014519 Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

90.00 3.090.00

10/28/2019 Bill INV# 014519 Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:613820 - Payable

SEO (Aff>)

910.00 4.000.00

11/19/2019 Bill 014655 Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

910.00 4,910.00

11/19/2019 Bill 014655 Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

90.00 5.000.00

12/18/2019 Bill INV# 014829 Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

910.00 5,910.00

12/18/2019 Bill INV# 014829 Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

90.00 6,000.00

01/27/2020 Bill 014995/015349 Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

90.00 6.090.00

01/27/2020 Bill 014995/015349 Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

910.00 7.000.00

03/04/2020 Bill INV# 015185 Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING;613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

90.00 7.090.00

03/04/2020 Bill INV# 015185 Ferebee

Lane

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES;61000 - Accounts

GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:613820 - Payable

SEO (A/P)

910.00 8.000.00

Total for 613820-SEO $8,600.66

Total for 61300 - ADVERTISING $8,000.00

Total for 61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES $8,000.00

Total for 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES $8,000.00

TOTAL $8,000.00

Accrual Basis Thursday. August 27.202012:52 PM GMT-04:00
174

Item 13.



facebook
Facebook, Inc.

1601 Willow Road

Menio Park, CA 94025-1452

United States

Account: 297760693913753

Billing Report: 07/01^019 - 06/30^020

Facebook Ads Payment

Payment Method: Visa*7548

Date Billed

06/30/2020

05/31/2020

04/30/2020

03/31/2020

03/14/2020

03/12/2020

03/10/2020

03/07/2020

03/05/2020

02/20/2020

02/15/2020

02/11/2020

02/07/2020

02/03/2020

i  01/31/2020

01/27/2020

:  01/23/2020

i  01/19/2020

12/31/2019

I  11/30/2019

Transaction ID

2810062729105231-5900962

2737195416391966-5759973

2628614353916743-5613218

2600443853400457-5486370

2529454267166086-5424526

2660417270736446-5415430

2549673978477449-5406028

2534317400013100-5397944

2565671660211016-5387982

2489730391138476-5330355

2481098872001628-5315753

2592708477507330-5299921

2455826217862225-5285316

2473773939400787-5269402

2502671393177710-5254451

2470940133017497-5242822

2487607998017383-5229196

2484299501681559-5216205

2382711921840320-5149812

2312447275533454-5035514

Amount Billed
t

$39.87 USD '

$50.57 USD i

$27.73 USD i

$506.16 USD i

$900.00 USD i

$900.00 USD i

$900.00 USD j

$900.00 USD 1

$1,072.66 USD i

1

$900.00 USD i

$900.00 USD i

$900.00 USD ;

$900.00 USD i
i

i

$900.00 USD I
1

$458.97 USD |
j

$900.00 USD I

$900.00 USD I
i

$900.00 USD I

$451.38 USD

$95.05 USD

175

Item 13.



176

Item 13.



177

Item 13.



178

Item 13.



179

Item 13.



180

Item 13.



181

Item 13.



lotyk

American Bus Marketplace 2020 Receipt
1 message

meetingsdept@buses.org <rne0tingsdept@buses.Org>
Reply-To: meetingsdept@buses.org
Ton

Greater Beaufort - Port Royal CVB Mail - American Bus Marketplace 2020 Receipt

WSG7Jarz47^UT9~ary:^zrHTvr

AMERICAN BUS ASSODiATiQIf

111 K Street NE

9th Floor

Washington, D.C. 20002

BILL TO:

Greater Beaufort-Port Royal Convention &amp;
Visitors Bureau

PC Box 501

713 Craven Street

Beaufort, SC 29901-0501
United States

INVOICE

Date Invoice Number

4/29/2019 [VIKPL-187837

Due date: 8/16/2019

Description Quantity Rate Amount
DM0 Appointment Taker (Sun AM/Sun PM) Early Bird
Registration -> Linda Jeffries

1 1,595.00 1,595.00

Total 1,595.00
Check (96401 Pavmentnn 7/24/2010 1,595.00

Balance Due 0.00

ps.//mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik-9389918c59&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1639947I67040R5R7n-? .«•<;! Tr.nf=

182

Item 13.



183

Item 13.



184

Item 13.



185

Item 13.



186

Item 13.



187

Item 13.



188

Item 13.



189

Item 13.



190

Item 13.



191

Item 13.



192

Item 13.



193

Item 13.



194

Item 13.



8/27/2020 Invoice No. 34378221

Invoice #34378221

JuM6, 2019

Description

Advantage Annual Plan

;  Tax

Paid on Jul 16, 2019 4:59:00 PM (UTC)

Billing Period

Julie, 2019-Jul 15, 2020

Quantity

1

Amount

$384

$26.88

TotaU $410.88

Billing Details
Greater Beaufort-Port Royal CVB

Beaufort

South Carolina

29901

United States

Username:!

How to Pay

Payment made on
Jul 16, 2019 4:59:00 PM (UTC).

Payment Method: VISA
Card Number(last 4 digits): 7548

Notes

J(

3050 South Delaware Street, San Mateo CA 94403, USA

Our Tax ID (EIN): 37-1581003

Contact: biUing@surveymonkey.com

I/l

195

Item 13.



196

Item 13.



197

Item 13.



198

Item 13.



199

Item 13.



200

Item 13.



201

Item 13.



202

Item 13.



203

Item 13.



204

Item 13.



205

Item 13.



206

Item 13.



207

Item 13.



208

Item 13.



209

Item 13.



210

Item 13.



211

Item 13.



212

Item 13.



213

Item 13.



214

Item 13.



215

Item 13.



Greater Beaufort-Port Royal CVB

TRANSACTION REPORT

July 2019 - June 2020

DATE TRANSACTION

TYPE

MEMO/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT AMOUNT balance

60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES

61000 • GENERAL EXPENSES

61300-ADVERTISING

61380-WEBSITE

07/30^019 Bill Ferebee Job 006214 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - AOVERTISiNG:61380 - Accounts Payable 8.64 8.64

Lane WEBSITE (A/P)

07/30/2019 Bill Ferebes 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:61380 • Accounts Payable 87.36 96.00

Lane WEBSITE (A/P)

09A13/2019 Bill Ferebee 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:61380 - Accounts Payable 8.64 104.64

Lane WEBSITE (A/P)

09/03/2019 Bill Ferebee INV# 014227 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 • ADVERTISINQ:61380 - Accounts Payable 87.36 192.00

Lane WEBSITE (/VP)

12/18/2019 Bill INVff Ferebee 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES;61300 - ADVERTISiNG;61380 - Accounts Payable 2.315.04 2.507.04

014829 Lane WEBSITE (/VP)

12/18/2019 Bill INV# Ferebee 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:61380 - Accounts Payable 228.96 2.736.00

014829 Lane WEBSITE (A/P)

03A>4/2020 Bill INV# ■ Ferebee 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - AOVERTISING:61380 - Accounts PayatXe 829.92 3.565.92

015185 Lane WEBSITE (/VP)

1

o

Bill INV# Ferebee 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - AOVERTISING:61380 - Accounts Payable 82.08 3.648.00

015185 Lane WEBSITE (A/P)

OAisaaoso Bill 015407 Ferebee 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - AOVERTIS[NG:61380 - Accounts Payatile 43.20 3.691.20

Lane WEBSITE (A/P)

04/29/2020 Bill 015407 Ferebee 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES:61000 - GENERAL EXPENSES:61300 - ADVERTISING:61380 - Accounts Payable 436.80 4.128.00

Lane WEBSITE (A/P)

Total (or 61380 • WKSITE

Total for 61300 - AOVERTISINQ

Total for 61000 • GENERAL EXPENSES

Total for 60000 - NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES

TOTAL

$4,128.00

$4,126.00

$4,128.00

$4,128.00

$4,128.00

Accrual Basis Thursday. August 27.2020 12:51 PM GMT-04:C0

216

Item 13.



217

Item 13.



218

Item 13.



219

Item 13.



220

Item 13.



221

Item 13.



222

Item 13.



223

Item 13.



iFHRESHOLD O w^^rt

Visit Beaufort Renewal Order

Customer Information

Customer Name:

Customer Address:

Billing Address:

Billing Contact: Phone: Email:

Order Summary

•  Platform Access: Customer will have access to the Threshold Platform and Content from July
31, 2019 through July 31, 2020

•  Content: Customer will have access to up to 299 locations in their platform

Platform & Content Pricing

•  Annual Platform License Fee: $17,000
•  Branded Google Upload: Included
•  Custom Maps: Included

Payment Terms

•  Invoice sent: Upon execution of this agreement
•  Payment Due: Within 30 days of receipt of Invoice

Threshold 360 agrees to provide the Threshold 360 Services detailed in the Platform Service

Agreement (http5://www.thre5hold360.com/platform-5ervice-agreement) in accordance with the
terms therein and in this Order Form, which together constitute the agreement between the parties. By
signing below, the parties agree to the terms of the agreement.

Threshoid360 Inc - 500 E Kennedy, Suite lOOE, Tampa, FL 33602
http://www.threshold360.com - support(S)threshold360.com

224

Item 13.



225

Item 13.



HILTON HEAD ISLAND • BLUFFTON

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

August 31, 2020

Ms. Ashley M. Jacobs

County Administrator

Beaufort County

100 Ribaut Road

Beaufort SC 29901-1228

Dear Ms. Jacobs,

We are in receipt of your letter requesting documentation of how A-TAX and H-TAX funds received from
the County were spent pursuant to the Beaufort County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 66-Taxation Article
II and Taxation Article V. For clarification, as a vendor to the County for marketing services, the Hilton

Head Island-Bluffton Chamber of Commerce does not receive any HTAX funding.

Attached you'll find the marketing plan detailing the expenditure of $150,000 in A-TAX marketing funds
for FY2019 and $150,000 in marketing funds for FY2020, along with our annual independent audit. We

look forward to a mutually agreed upon time within the next 90 days whereby you, the "licensed official"
or other authorized agent of the County, or any member of County Council who wants to participate in

good faith, can review financials related to A-TAX funds received from the County. As Is our arrangement

with both the Town of Hilton Head Island and the Town of Bluffton, detailed financials will be available in

our chamber boardroom for full review and inspection. Social distancing measures and safety protocols

will be in place and Chamber staff will be available to answer any questions you might have.

We have offered on four separate occasions, twice in Beaufort County Finance Committee meetings on

February 4, 2019 and September 24, 2018 and twice in correspondence following the private letter, not
on County letterhead, sent by councilmen Covert and Hervochon, that the County is welcome to review

detailed financials in this manner.

As we have previously stated, there is arduous oversight of our organization and we welcome that

scrutiny. We have consistently demonstrated complete compliance with, and in many cases, exceeded

the transparency standards set forth by federal, state and local laws regarding A-TAX investment which is

paid for by visitors to the destination.

We welcome the contractual process and feel It sets clear expectations for both the Chamber and

Beaufort County. We have contractual agreements with the Town of Hilton Head Island and the Town of

PO BOX 5647 HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SC 29938 TF 1 800 523 3373 P 843 785 3673 F 843 785 7110

E INFO@HILTONHEADISLAND.ORG WWW.HILTONHEADISLAND.ORG

2.000, 2.006 &f 2.014 SVoJioaof (HAoiTL&ei tFie
226

Item 13.



227

Item 13.



HILTON HEAD ISLAND - BLUFFTON

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

Financial Statements

with Additional Information

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
and

Independent Auditors' Report

J. W. Hunt and Company, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

228

Item 13.



229

Item 13.



230

Item 13.



231

Item 13.



232

Item 13.



233

Item 13.



234

Item 13.



235

Item 13.



236

Item 13.



237

Item 13.



238

Item 13.



239

Item 13.



240

Item 13.



241

Item 13.



242

Item 13.



243

Item 13.



244

Item 13.



245

Item 13.



246

Item 13.



247

Item 13.



248

Item 13.



249

Item 13.



250

Item 13.



251

Item 13.



252

Item 13.



253

Item 13.



254

Item 13.



255

Item 13.



256

Item 13.



257

Item 13.



258

Item 13.



259

Item 13.



260

Item 13.



261

Item 13.



262

Item 13.



263

Item 13.



264

Item 13.



265

Item 13.



266

Item 13.



2020 GO Bond
Original Items to be funded

Original Amended
Bond Revenue 11,775,000                     11,775,000                       

Outlays
Bond Issuance costs (100,000)                          (50,000)                             

Technology equipment (3,000,000)                      (2,700,000)                        
IT Arthur Horne (300,000)                           
Courthouse (300,000)                           
Material Recovery Facility MuRF (1,900,000)                        
Public facilities relocation renovation (3,500,000)                      -                                     
Detention Center (1,000,000)                      (1,575,000)                        
Arthur Horne (3,500,000)                      (4,775,000)                        
TCL-CAI payments (500,000)                          -                                     
Contingency (175,000)                          (175,000)                           

(11,775,000)                    (11,775,000)                     
-                                    -                                     

267

Item 14.



268

Item 14.



269

Item 14.



270

Item 14.



271

Item 14.



272

Item 14.



273

Item 14.



274

Item 14.



275

Item 14.



276

Item 14.



277

Item 14.



278

Item 14.



279

Item 14.



280

Item 14.



281

Item 14.



282

Item 14.



283

Item 14.



284

Item 14.



285

Item 14.



286

Item 14.



287

Item 14.



288

Item 14.



289

Item 14.



290

Item 14.



291

Item 14.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

2020 GO Bond Projects  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Hayes Williams Interim CFO 

10 Minutes 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The original bond was to be issued in 2019, but we waited until August 2020 so that we could combine this 
issuance with the issuance for the Rural and Critical Lands bond, which was a cost savings. Some of the 
original projects have changed scope or have been eliminated, so we are redefining the project list for this 
issuance. 

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

There was over a year between the initial approval and the issuance of the 2020 GO Bond for $11,775,000. 
Additional costs at the Arthur Horne Building and the Detention Center resulted in a need for reallocation of 
funds. New projects were also added such as a Solid Waste material recovery facility and HVAC repair for the 
Federal Courthouse.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

No additional funding necessary, this is only an update on the project list.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Information and discussion. 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Information and discussion. 

 

 

 

292

Item 14.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

DISCUSSION CONCERNING VOTER REGISTRATION AND ELECTIONS GRANT APPLICATION 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee    9/21/2020    2:00PM 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Marie Small, Director 

Board of Voter Registration and Elections of Beaufort County 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Link to grant information: 

https://www.techandciviclife.org/our-work/election-officials/grants/ 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

 

 

 

293

Item 15.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item Summary 

Item Title: 

APPOINTMENT TO BOARDS AND COMMISSION 

 AIRPORTS BOARD

Committee: 

 FINANCE COMMITTEE

Meeting Date: 

 FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING SEPTEMBER 21, 2020

Committee Presenter (Name and Title): 

Issues for Consideration: 

 CONSIDERATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF IAN SCOTT FOR AIRPORTS BOARD
o Beaufort Regional Chamber of Commerce appointee

Points to Consider: 

Funding & Liability Factors: 

Council Options: 

• APPROVE, MODIFY OR REJECT

Recommendation: 

294

Item 16.



COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
County Boards, Agencies, Commissions, Authorities and Committees 

County Council of Beaufort County selects citizens for service on Council appointed Boards, Agencies, Commissions, Authorities and Committees 
from a roster of individuals who have either volunteered or have been recommended for appointment.  The Clerk to Council uses this form to keep 
an up-to-date roster of volunteers and to provide Council basic information about each volunteer. 

    

 

Top Three Priorities: Please indicate by placing a “1”, 
“2”, or “3” alongside your choices.  

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

 Accommodations Tax (2% State) 
 Airports  
 Alcohol and Drug Abuse  

____ Assessment Appeals 
____ Beaufort County Transportation  
____ Beaufort-Jasper Economic Opportunity 

 Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer  
 Beaufort Memorial Hospital 
 Bluffton Township Fire 
 Burton Fire  
 Coastal Zone Management Appellate  (inactive) 
 Construction Adjustments and Appeals  
 Daufuskie Island Fire 
 Design Review 

____ Disabilities and Special Needs 
____ Economic Development Corporation 

 Forestry (inactive) 
         Historic Preservation Review 
____ Keep Beaufort County Beautiful 

 Lady's Island / St. Helena Island Fire 
 Library  
 Lowcountry Council of Governments 
 Lowcountry Regional Transportation Authority 
 Parks and Recreation 
 Planning * 
 Rural and Critical Lands Preservation 
 Sheldon Fire 
 Social Services (inactive) 
 Solid Waste and Recycling 
 Southern Beaufort County Corridor Beautification 
 Stormwater Management Utility  
 Zoning  

DATE:   NAME:       

BEAUFORT COUNTY VOTER REGISTRATION NUMBER: ___________________  

OCCUPATION: _____________________________________________ 

TELEPHONE: (Home) (Office)  EMAIL: 

HOME ADDRESS:  STATE:  ZIP CODE: 

MAILING ADDRESS:  STATE:  ZIP CODE: 

COUNTY COUNCIL DISTRICT:       1     2   3  4    5     6   7      8    9     10     11 

ETHNICITY:         Caucasian           African American          Other 

Are you presently serving on a Board, Agency, Commission, Authority or Committee?         Yes  No 

If “yes”, what is the name of the board and when does term expire? 

• Please return completed form and a brief resume’ either Email or U.S. Mail:
o Email:   boardsandcommissions@bcgov.net
o U.S. Mail:   Clerk to Council, County Council of Beaufort County, P.O. Drawer 1228, Beaufort, SC 29901

• Applications without a brief resume’ cannot be considered.
• Applications will be held three (3) years for consideration.
• All information contained on this application is subject to public disclosure.

YOU MUST BE A BEAUFORT COUNTY REGISTERED VOTER TO APPLY 
YOU MUST ATTACH YOUR RESUME’ WITH THIS APPLICATION TO BE CONSIDERED 

An incomplete application will be returned 

* Anyone submitting an application to serve on the Planning Commission must fill out the
questionnaire on page 2.

Applicant’s Signature: 

8/19/20 Ian D. Scott

1

336-529-9571 843-525-8527 ian@beaufortchamber.org

907 Emmons St. 

907 Emmons St

SC

SC

29902

29902

470796852

Chamber of Commerce Executive

Submit by Email295

Item 16.

http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/airports-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/alcohol-and-drug-abuse-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/beaufort-jasper-economic-opportunity-authority/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/beaufort-jasper-water-and-sewer-authority/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/beaufort-memorial-hospital-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/bluffton-township-fire-commission/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/burton-fire-commission/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/coastal-zone-management-appellare-panel/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/construction-adjustments-and-appeals-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/daufuskie-island-fire-commission/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/disabilities-and-special-needs-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/forestry-commission/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/historic-preservation-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/ladys-island-fire-commission/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/library-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/lowcountry-council-of-governments/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/lowcountry-regional-transportation-authority/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/parks-and-leisure-services-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/planning-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/rural-and-critical-lands-preservation-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/sheldon-township-fire-commission/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/social-services/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/solid-waste-and-recycle-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/southern-beaufort-median-beautification/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/stormwater-management-utility-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/zoning-appeals-board/index.php
mailto:boardsandcommissions@bcgov.net


Beaufort County Planning Commission 
Supplemental Application Questionnaire 

This questionnaire will assist the County Council in assessing your qualifications and experience for the Planning Commission vacancy. 

Please explain why you want to serve on the Planning Commission. 

What qualifications, experience and expertise make you a good candidate for the Planning Commission? 

What role do you feel the Planning Commission plays in making Beaufort County a desirable community in which to live and work? 

What do you believe are the most important planning issues facing the County during the next five years? 

What previous experience have you had in serving on a Planning Commission?  Give some examples of the items typically handled by the Planning 
Commission.   

296

Item 16.



From: Weitz, Kristina
To: Vaughn, Tithanie
Subject: RE: Ian Scott
Date: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 4:39:49 PM
Attachments: image001.png

He is active and in CC 2

Kris

From: Vaughn, Tithanie <tithanie.vaughn@bcgov.net> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 16:12
To: Weitz, Kristina <kweitz@bcgov.net>
Subject: Ian Scott

Can you check?

Ian D. Scott
VR#470796852

907 Emmons Street
Beaufort, SC 29902

Thank you,

T. Vaughn
Senior Administrative Assistant to Clerk to Council
Beaufort County Government, SC
843-255-2182 (Office)

Stay Safe ! Stay Healthy !

297

Item 16.

mailto:kweitz@bcgov.net
mailto:tithanie.vaughn@bcgov.net


	Top
	5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	CURRENT AIS
	060420 Finance
	071320 Finance
	81720 Finance
	52820 Finance

	6.	Penn Center Ordinance Amendment
	Penn Center funding ordinance amended
	AIS Penn Center Amendment 20200921

	7.	ATax/ HTax reserve fund ordinance
	ORDINANCE 2020-__ re special atax htax allocations
	AIS Htax Atax reserve fund ordinance 20200921

	8.	Professional Services Agreement with Greater Beaufort Port Royal Convention and Visitor’s Bureau
	Agenda Item Summary for DMO agreement with Beaufort-Port Royal CVB
	Agreement  CVB - County DMO Agreement 2020

	9.	Distance Learning Grant
	AIS Distance Learning 20209021

	10.	Status of the internal auditor
	AIS discussion internal auditor 20200921

	11.	CAFR timeline discussion
	AIS Internal Audit Discussion 20200921

	12.	Budget Book Update Discussion
	AIS Discussion Budget Book Status

	13.	Review and discussion of DMO’s and Chambers submission’s
	AIS DMO Chamber 20200921
	GBPRCVB Advertising - 61460
	GBPRCVB Billboards - 61340
	GBPRCVB Booking Engine - 61385
	GBPRCVB Electronic Media - 61320
	GBPRCVB Financial Audit - 2018 - 2019
	GBPRCVB Email Marketing - 61360
	GBPRCVB Membership Dues - 61405
	GBPRCVB Fulfillment Services - 64700
	GBPRCVB Recovery Ad Spend - 70000
	GBPRCVB Print Advertising - 6130
	GBPRCVB Public Relations - 61370
	GBPRCVB Printing - 61450
	GBPRCVB SEO - 613820
	GBPRCVB Social Media - 61350
	GBPRCVB Tradeshows & Meetings - 61420
	GBPRCVB Research - 64400
	GBPRCVB Website - 61380
	GBPRCVB Website - Plugins - 61381
	Hilton Head Island - Bluffton Chamber of Commerce Letter 08.31.2020
	Hilton Head Island - Bluffton Chamber of Commerce Financial Statements for Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
	Beaufort County Black Chamber of Commerce A-TAX and H-TAX Documents

	14.	GO Bond discussion
	GO Bond Projects 2020
	GO Bonds 2019B
	AIS GO Bond 2020 Projects 20200921

	15.	COVID-19 RESPONSE GRANT FOR ELECTION OFFICIALS
	AIS - Voter Registration and Elections Grant Discussion

	16.	CONSIDERATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF IAN SCOTT FOR AIRPORTS BOARD
	Airports

	Bottom

